Public Document Pack

Cherwell District Council

Planning Committee

Minutes of a meeting of the Planning Committee held at Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury, Oxon OX15 4AA, on 2 November 2023 at 4.00 pm

Present:

Councillor George Reynolds (Chairman)

Councillor Andrew Beere

Councillor Rebecca Biegel

Councillor John Broad

Councillor Phil Chapman

Councillor Becky Clarke MBE

Councillor Jean Conway

Councillor Ian Harwood

Councillor Lesley McLean

Councillor Julian Nedelcu

Councillor Lynn Pratt

Councillor Les Sibley

Councillor Nigel Simpson

Councillor Amanda Watkins

Councillor Barry Wood

Substitute Members:

Councillor Sandy Dallimore (In place of Councillor Simon Holland)

Councillor Dorothy Walker (In place of Councillor Fiona Mawson)
Councillor Douglas Webb (In place of Councillor Maurice Billington)

Apologies for absence:

Councillor Maurice Billington Councillor Simon Holland Councillor Fiona Mawson

Officers:

Shiraz Sheikh, Assistant Director Law & Governance and Monitoring Officer Paul Seckington, Head of Development Management Nat Stock, Team Leader - North Area General Developments Andrew Thompson, Principal Planning Officer Linda Griffiths, Principal Planning Officer Rebekah Morgan, Principal Planning Officer Imogen Hopkin, Senior Planning Officer Karen Jordan, Deputy Principal Solicitor Aaron Hetherington, Principal Officer - Electoral Services Lead

Matt Swinford, Democratic and Elections Officer David Rogers, Democratic and Elections Officer

69 **Declarations of Interest**

12. Whitelands Farm Sports Ground, Whitelands Way, Bicester, OX26 1AJ.

Councillor Les Sibley, Other Registerable Interest, as a member of Bicester Town Council Planning Committee.

70 Requests to Address the Meeting

The Chairman advised that requests to address the meeting would be dealt with at each item.

71 **Minutes**

The Minutes of the meeting held on 5 October 2023 were agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

72 Chairman's Announcements

The Chairman made the following announcement:

1. Advised members of the public attending the meeting that only registered speakers may address the Committee and requested that they did not cause a disturbance.

73 Urgent Business

There were no items of urgent business.

74 Proposed Pre-Committee Site Visits (if any)

There were no proposed Pre-Committee site visits.

OS Parcel 3673 Adjoining And West Of 161 Rutten Lane, Yarnton, OX5

The Committee considered application 21/03522/OUT, an outline planning application for the erection of up to 540 dwellings (Class C3), up to 9,000sqm GEA of elderly/extra care residential floorspace (Class C2), a Community Home Work Hub (up to 200sqm)(Class E), alongside the creation of two locally equipped areas for play, one NEAP, up to 1.8 hectares of playing

pitches and amenity space for the William Fletcher Primary School, two vehicular access points, green infrastructure, areas of public open space, two community woodland areas, a local nature reserve, footpaths, tree planting, restoration of historic hedgerow, and associated works with all matters are reserved, save for the principal access points at OS Parcel 3673 Adjoining And West Of 161 Rutten Lane Yarnton OX5 1LT for Merton College.

Dave Thornhill and Steve Smith, on behalf of Yarnton Flood Defence Group and Yarnton Parish Council addressed the Committee in objection to the application.

Robert Davies, on behalf of the agent for the applicant, Gerald Eve, addressed the Committee in support of the application.

Members were asked for their observations regarding what their determination would have been, had an appeal against the non-determination of the application not been lodged.

In reaching its decision the Committee considered the officers' report, presentation, addresses from the public speakers and the written updates.

Resolved

That, in line with the officer's recommendation, had the power to determine application 21/03522/OUT continued to rest with the Committee, the Committee would have refused application 21/03522/OUT for the following reasons.

1. The proposal has failed to adequately demonstrate that the application will deliver the public open space in the form of an informal parkland as specifically required by Policy PR9 which is required as a consequence of removing the allocated land from the Green Belt. As such the proposal is contrary to Policy PR9 of the Cherwell Local Plan Review 2020, the approved Development Brief and Government guidance within the National Planning Policy Framework.

Note to Appellant: This reason for refusal is capable of being addressed.

2. The proposal has failed to adequately demonstrate that the development would not impact existing flora and fauna and that ecological mitigation would successfully deliver a 10% net gain in biodiversity and to ensure the protection, enhancement and connectivity with the local green infrastructure network alongside the successful delivery of the Local Nature Reserve. As such the proposal fails to accord with Policies ESD9, ESD10 and ESD13 of the adopted Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031, Policies PR5 and PR9 of the Cherwell Local Plan Partial Review 2020, the approved Development Brief and Government guidance within the National Planning Policy Framework.

Note to Appellant: This reason for refusal is capable of being addressed.

- 3. The application proposal has failed to secure an appropriate safe and convenient access from William Fletcher Primary School to the new school playing fields as required by Policy PR9 which is contiguous with the existing school boundary. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policy PR9 of the Cherwell Local Plan Partial Review 2020, the adopted Development Brief and Government guidance within the National Planning Policy Framework. Note to Appellant: This reason for refusal is capable of being addressed.
- 4. The proposed development, when set against the financial viability of the scheme, would fail to provide an adequate level of affordable housing provision. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies PR2 and PR9 of the Cherwell Local Plan Partial Review 2020 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

Note to Appellant: This reason for refusal is capable of being addressed.

5. In the absence of a satisfactory Planning Obligation, the Local Planning Authority is not satisfied that the development would provide for appropriate on-site infrastructure or infrastructure contributions towards offsite mitigation required as a result of the development and necessary to make the impacts of the development acceptable in planning terms, to the detriment of both existing and proposed residents contrary to Policy INF1 of the adopted Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031, Policies PR2, PR9 and PR11 of the Cherwell Local Plan Review 2020 and Government guidance within the National Planning Policy Framework.

Note to Appellant: This reason for refusal is capable of being addressed.

76 Land To The North West Of Old Farm House Adjoining Orchard Piece, Mollington

The Committee considered application 23/00334/F for the erection of a single dwelling, alterations to existing access off Orchard Piece, felling of 6 Category C trees at Land To The North West Of Old Farm House Adjoining Orchard Piece, Mollington for Mr T Hill and Ms K North.

Lousie Steele on behalf of the agent for the applicant, Framptons Town Planning Limited and on behalf of Mr Michael Boik, local resident, addressed the Committee in support of the application.

In reaching its decision the Committee considered the officers' report, presentation, address from the public speaker and the written updates.

Resolved

That, in line with the officer's recommendation, application 23/00334/F be approved subject to the conditions set out below (and any amendments to those conditions as deemed necessary) and the completion of a Planning Obligation under section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as

substituted by the Planning and Compensation Act 1991, to secure the heads of terms as set out in the annex to the Minutes, as set out in the Minute book (and any amendments deemed necessary).

Conditions

- 1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.
 - Reason To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.
- 2. Except where otherwise stipulated by conditions attached to this permission, the development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the application forms and the following plans and documents:
 - Location/Block Plan, drawing number 5624.01 Rev B
 - Proposed Floor Plans/Roof Plan, drawing number 5624.02 Rev C
 - Proposed South and West Elevations, drawing number 5624.03 Rev D
 - Proposed North and East Elevations, drawing number 5624.04
 Rev C
 - Tree Constraints Plan, drawing number 11548 Tcp 01
 - Mollington Topographical Survey, drawing number 1215 1319 1
 - Renovation of Existing Outbuilding, drawing number 5624.05
 - Arboricultural Impact Assessment
 - Ecological Report □ Biodiversity Net Gain Feasibility Study
 - Biodiversity Net Gain Feasibility Study Appendix 1
 - Biodiversity Net Gain Feasibility Study Appendix 2
 - Biodiversity Net Gain Feasibility Study Appendix 3

 NSP
 Certificate
 - Biodiversity Impact Map v1

Reason – For the avoidance of doubt, to ensure that the development is carried out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority and comply with Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

3. No development shall commence above slab level unless and until a stone sample panel (minimum 1m2 in size) has been constructed on site and has been inspected and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The new stonework to be used in the construction of the external walls of the new dwelling hereby approved shall be laid, dressed, coursed and pointed in strict accordance with the approved stone sample panel, and shall be retained as such thereafter.

Reason – In the interests of the character and appearance of the area and to comply with Policy ESD15 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031

- Part 1, Saved Policy C28 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.
- 4. No development shall commence above slab level unless and until samples of the slate to be used externally in the construction of the roof of the new buildings hereby approved have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the sample approved and shall be retained as such thereafter.
 - Reason To ensure the satisfactory appearance of the completed development and to preserve the character and appearance of the area and designated heritage asset, to comply with Policy ESD15 of the Cherwell Local Plan 20112031 Part 1, Saved Policy C28 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.
- 5. No development shall commence above slab level unless and until a schedule of any external materials not included within Condition 3 or 4 have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the sample approved and shall be retained as such thereafter.
 - Reason To ensure the satisfactory appearance of the completed development and to preserve the character and appearance of the area and designated heritage asset, to comply with Policy ESD15 of the Cherwell Local Plan 20112031 Part 1, Saved Policy C28 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.
- 6. Prior to their installation in the development, full details of the doors, windows and rooflights hereby approved, at a scale of 1:20 including a cross section, cill, lintel and recess detail and colour/finish, shall be submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The doors and windows shall not be installed within the building other than in accordance with the approved details and shall be retained as such thereafter. Reason To ensure the satisfactory appearance of the completed development and to preserve the character and appearance of the area, to comply with Policy ESD15 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 Part 1, Saved Policy C28 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.
- 7. Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved, a landscaping scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme for landscaping the site shall include:-

- (a) details of the proposed tree and shrub planting including their species, number, sizes and positions, together with grass seeded/turfed areas.
- (b) details of the existing trees and hedgerows to be retained as well as those to be felled, including existing and proposed soil levels at the base of each tree/hedgerow and the minimum distance between the base of the tree and the nearest edge of any excavation,
- (c) details of the hard surface areas, including pavements, pedestrian areas, reduced-dig areas, crossing points and steps.
- (d) details of boundary treatments. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved landscaping scheme and the hard landscape elements shall be carried out prior to the first occupation/use of the development and shall be retained as such thereafter.

Reason – In the interests of the visual amenities of the area, to ensure the creation of a pleasant environment for the development and to comply with Policy ESD15 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011 – 2031 Part 1, Saved Policy C28 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

8. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be carried out in accordance with BS 4428:1989 Code of Practice for general landscape operations (excluding hard surfaces), or the most up to date and current British Standard, in the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of the building(s) or on the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner. Any trees, herbaceous planting and shrubs which, within a period of five years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the current/next planting season with others of similar size and species.

Reason – In the interests of the visual amenities of the area, to ensure the creation of a pleasant environment for the development and to comply with Policy ESD15 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 Part 1, saved Policy C28 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

9. No retained tree shall be cut down, uprooted, damaged or destroyed, nor shall any retained tree be pruned in any manner, be it branches, stems or roots, other than in accordance with the approved plans and particulars, without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. All tree works shall be carried out in accordance with BS3998: Recommendations for Tree Works.

If any retained tree is cut down, uprooted, destroyed or dies, another tree shall be planted in the same place in the next planting season

following the removal of that tree, full details of which shall be firstly submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

In this condition a "retained tree" is an existing tree which shall be retained in accordance with the approved plans and particulars; and paragraphs (a) and (b) shall have effect until the expiration of five years from the date of the decision.

Reason - In the interests of the visual amenities of the area, to ensure the creation of a pleasant environment for the development and to comply with Policy ESD15 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 Part 1, saved Policy C28 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

10. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, an Arboricultural Method Statement (AMS), undertaken in accordance with BS:5837:2012 and all subsequent amendments and revisions shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, all works on site shall be carried out in accordance with the approved AMS.

Reason - To ensure the continued health of retained trees/hedges and to ensure that they are not adversely affected by the construction works, in the interests of the visual amenity of the area, to ensure the integration of the development into the existing built environment and to comply with Policy C28 of the adopted Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

11. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, full details of the means of access between the land and the highway, including, position, layout, construction, drainage and vision splays shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the means of access shall be constructed and retained in accordance with the approved details.

Reason – In the interests of highway safety and to comply with Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

12. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, a plan showing car parking provision for 2 spaces to be accommodated within the site, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the parking spaces shall be laid out in accordance with the approved details and shall be constructed from porous materials or provision shall be made to direct run-off water from the hard surface to a permeable or porous area or surface within the curtilage of the site and the car parking spaces shall be retained in accordance with this condition for the parking of vehicles at all times thereafter.

Reason - In the interests of highway safety, to ensure the provision of off-street car parking and to comply with Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

- 13. No development shall take place (including demolition, ground works, vegetation clearance) until a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP: Biodiversity) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The CEMP: Biodiversity shall include as a minimum:
 - a) Risk assessment of potentially damaging construction activities;
 - b) Identification of 'Biodiversity Protection Zones';
 - c) Practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive working practices) to avoid or reduce impacts during construction (may be provided as a set of method statements);
 - d) The location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to biodiversity features;
 - e) The times during construction when specialist ecologists need to be present on site to oversee works;
 - f) Responsible persons and lines of communication;
 - g) The role and responsibilities on site of an ecological clerk of works (ECoW) or similarly competent person;
 - h) Use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and warning signs

The approved CEMP: Biodiversity shall be adhered to and implemented throughout the construction period strictly in accordance with the approved details, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason - To conserve and enhance biodiversity and prevent the spread of nonnative species in accordance with Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

- 14. Prior to the commencement above slab level of the development hereby approved, full details of a scheme for the location of bat, bird, owl and invertebrate boxes on the dwelling shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter and prior to the occupation of any building, the bat, bird, owl and invertebrate boxes shall be installed on the site in accordance with the approved details.
 - Reason To protect habitats of importance to biodiversity conservation from any loss or damage in accordance with Policy ESD10 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 Part 1 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.
- 15. No development hereby permitted shall take place except in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Council's Organisational Licence (WML-OR112, or a 'Further Licence') and with the proposals detailed on plan "Land formerly known as 'Beggar's Boy Cottage': Impact Plan for great crested newt District Licensing (Version 1)", dated 13th September 2023.

Reason - In order to ensure that adverse impacts on great crested newts are adequately mitigated and to ensure that site works are delivered in full compliance with the organisational licence (WML-OR112, or a 'Further Licence'), section 15 of the National Planning Policy Framework, Circular 06/2005 and the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 200

- 16. No development hereby permitted shall take place except in accordance with Part 1 of the Great Crested Newt Mitigation Principles, as set out in the District Licence WML-OR112 (or a 'Further Licence'), and in addition in compliance with the following:
 - Works which will affect likely newt hibernacula may only be undertaken during the active period for amphibians.

Reason - In order to ensure that adverse impacts on great crested newts are adequately mitigated and to ensure that site works are delivered in full compliance with the Organisational Licence (WML-OR112, or a 'Further Licence'), section 15 of the National Planning Policy Framework, Circular 06/2005 and the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 200

17. Notwithstanding the provisions of Classes A to E (inc.) of Part 1, Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking or reenacting or amending that order with or without modification) the approved dwelling shall not be extended, nor shall any structures be erected within the curtilage of the said dwelling, without the grant of further specific planning permission from the Local Planning Authority.

Reason – In the interests of the character and appearance of the area and in the interests of sustainable development and to comply with Policy ESD15 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011 – 2031 Part 1, Saved Policy C28 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

77 Scrapyard, Bunkers Hill, Shipton on Cherwell

The Committee considered application 23/01303/F for the erection of a single dwelling, detached garage and construction of new vehicular access at Scrapyard, Bunkers Hill, Shipton on Cherwell for Evans Exports Ltd.

Henry Venners, on behalf of the agent for the applicant, JPPC, addressed the Committee in support of the application.

In reaching its decision the Committee considered the officers' report, presentation and address from the public speaker.

Resolved

That, in line with the officer's recommendation, application 23/01303/F be refused for the following reason.

The proposal constitutes residential development in the open countryside, beyond the built-up limits of a settlement, for which it has not been demonstrated that there is an essential need. The dwelling would therefore be an unjustified and unsustainable form of development. The proposed development is therefore contrary to Policies ESD1, BSC1 and Villages 1 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 Part 1, Policy H18 of Cherwell Local Plan 1996, and Government guidance within the National Planning Policy Framework.

78 Land to Rear of Gracewell Care Home, Gardner Way, Adderbury

The Committee considered application 21/01966/F for the erection of 18 dwellings and an access road at land to rear of Gracewell Care Home, Gardner Way, Adderbury for Malvern Homes Limited.

Councillor Rob Pattenden addressed the Committee as Local Ward Member.

Dianne Bratt, Chairman of Adderbury Parish Council, addressed the committee in objection to the application.

David Rahul, the applicant, addressed the committee in support to the application.

In reaching its decision the Committee considered the officers' report and presentation, the address of the public speaker and written updates.

Resolved

- (1) That. in line with the officer's recommendation, application 22/00747/OUT, be approved and authority be delegated to the Assistant Director for Planning and Development to grant permission, subject to
 - a) The conditions set out below (and any amendments to those conditions as deemed necessary) and
 - b) The completion of a planning obligation under section 106 of the town and country planning act 1990, as substituted by the Planning and Compensation Act 1991, to secure necessary mitigation as set out in the annex to the Minutes, as set out in the Minute book (and any amendments deemed necessary)

Conditions

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in complete accordance with the approved plans reference SLP1, 03, 05, received 04/06/2021 revised plans reference 01 Rev A, 02 Rev A, 03 Rev A, 04, 06 rev B, 07 Rev A, 08 Rev A, 09, 10, 11 Rev A, 12 Rev A, 14, 15 received 09/09/2022 unless a non-material or minor material amendment is approved by the Local Planning Authority under the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 (as amended).

Reason: To clarify the permission and for the avoidance of doubt.

3. No development shall take place until the applicant (or their agents or successors in title) has submitted to and had approved in writing by the local planning authority a programme of archaeological work consisting of a written scheme of investigation and a timetable for that work. The development shall thereafter proceed in accordance with the approved written scheme of investigation and timetable.

Reason: To secure the provision of archaeological investigation and the subsequent recording of the remains, to comply with Government advice in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (Section 16). This information is required prior to commencement of the development as it is fundamental to the acceptability of the scheme.

4. Following the approval of the Written Scheme of Investigation referred to in condition 3, and prior to the commencement of the development (other than in accordance with the agreed Written Scheme of Investigation), a staged programme of archaeological mitigation shall be carried out by the commissioned archaeological organisation in accordance with the approved Written Scheme of Investigation. The programme of work shall include all processing, research and analysis necessary to produce an accessible and useable archive and a full report for publication which shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority within two years of the completion of the archaeological fieldwork.

Reason: To safeguard the identification, recording, analysis and archiving of heritage assets before they are lost and to advance understanding of the heritage assets in their wider context through publication and dissemination of the evidence in accordance with the NPPF.

5. No development shall commence unless and until a detailed surface water drainage scheme for the site has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be subsequently implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to the first occupation of the development. The scheme shall include:

- A compliance report to demonstrate how the scheme complies with the "Local Standards and Guidance for Surface Water Drainage on Major Development in Oxfordshire";
- Full drainage calculations for all events up to and including the 1 in 100 year plus 40% climate change and 10% urban creep (Note: the Cv values should be set to 0.95 and MADD should be 0.0);
- A Flood Exceedance Conveyance Plan;
- Comprehensive infiltration testing across the site to BRE DG 365;
- Detailed design drainage layout drawings of the SuDS proposals including crosssection details;
- Detailed maintenance management plan in accordance with Section 32 of CIRIA C753 including maintenance schedules for each drainage element;
- Details of how water quality will be managed during construction and post development in perpetuity; and
- Consent for any connections into third party drainage systems

Reason: To ensure that there is no flooding due to the site drainage and that the water environment is protected and in accordance with Policies ESD6 and ESD7 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

- 6. Prior to the first occupation of the development a record of the installed SuDS and site wide drainage scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority for deposit with the Lead Local Flood Authority Asset Register. The details shall include:
 - As built plans in both .pdf and .shp file format;
 - Photographs to document each key stage of the drainage system when installed on site;
 - Photographs to document the completed installation of the drainage structures on site;
 - The name and contact details of any appointed management company information.

Reason: In accordance with section 21 of the Flood and Water Management Act 2010 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

7. A schedule of materials and finishes to be used in the external walls and roof(s) of the dwelling(s) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of those works. The development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the approved details and shall be retained as such thereafter.

Reason: To ensure that the materials are appropriate to the appearance of the locality and to ensure the satisfactory appearance of the completed development in accordance with Policy ESD15 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011 – 2031 Part 1, Saved Policy C28 of the

Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

8. No development shall commence unless and until a report has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority that demonstrates all habitable rooms within the dwellings will achieve the noise levels specified in BS8233:2014 (Guidance on sound insulation and noise reduction for buildings) for indoor and external noise levels (if required, then the methods for rating noise in BS4142:2014 should be used, such as for noise from industrial sources). Thereafter, and prior to the first occupation of the dwellings affected by this condition, the dwellings shall be insulated and maintained in accordance with approved details.

Reason: To avoid noise giving rise to significant adverse impacts on health and quality of life and to comply with advice in the NPPF (section 15) and Saved Policy ENV1 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996.

- 9. No development shall take place, including any works of demolition until a Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The statement shall provide for at a minimum:
 - a. The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;
 - b. The routeing of HGVs to and from the site:
 - c. Loading and unloading of plant and materials;
 - d. Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development;
 - e. The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate;
 - f. Wheel washing facilities including type of operation (automated, water recycling etc) and road sweeping;
 - g. Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction;
 - h. A scheme for recycling/ disposing of waste resulting from demolition and construction works;
 - i. Delivery, demolition and construction working hours; The approved Construction Method Statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction period for the development.

Reason: To ensure the environment is protected during construction in accordance with Saved Policy ENV1 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework. This information is required prior to commencement of the development as it is fundamental to the acceptability of the scheme.

10. No part of the development hereby permitted shall take place until a desk study and site walk over to identify all potential contaminative uses on site, and to inform the conceptual site model has been carried out by a competent person and in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's 'Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11' and has been submitted to and approved in

writing by the Local Planning Authority. No development shall take place until the Local Planning Authority has given its written approval that it is satisfied that no potential risk from contamination has been identified.

Reason: To ensure that any ground and water contamination is identified and adequately addressed to ensure the safety of the development, the environment and to ensure the site is suitable for the proposed use to comply with Saved Policy ENV12 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and Section 15 of the National Planning Policy Framework. This information is required prior to commencement of the development as it is fundamental to the acceptability of the scheme.

11. If a potential risk from contamination is identified as a result of the work carried out under condition 11, prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted a comprehensive intrusive investigation in order to characterise the type, nature and extent of contamination present, the risks to receptors and to inform the remediation strategy proposals shall be documented as a report undertaken by a competent person and in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's 'Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11' and submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No development shall take place unless the Local Planning Authority has given its written approval that it is satisfied that the risk from contamination has been adequately characterised as required by this condition.

Reason: To ensure that any ground and water contamination is adequately addressed to ensure the safety of the development, the environment and to ensure the site is suitable for the proposed use, to comply with Saved Policy ENV12 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and Section 15 of the National Planning Policy Framework. This information is required prior to commencement of the development as it is fundamental to the acceptability of the scheme.

12. If contamination is found by undertaking the work carried out under condition 10, prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted a scheme of remediation and/or monitoring to ensure the site is suitable for its proposed use shall be prepared by a competent person and in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's 'Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11' and submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No development shall take place until the Local Planning Authority has given its written approval of the scheme of remediation and/or monitoring required by this condition.

Reason: To ensure that any ground and water contamination is adequately addressed to ensure the safety of the development, the environment and to ensure the site is suitable for the proposed use, to comply with Saved Policy ENV12 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and Section 15 of the National Planning Policy Framework. This information

is required prior to commencement of the development as it is fundamental to the acceptability of the scheme.

13. If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present at the site, no further development shall be carried out until full details of a remediation strategy detailing how the unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the remediation strategy shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure that any ground and water contamination is identified and adequately addressed to ensure the safety of the development, the environment and to ensure the site is suitable for the proposed use, to comply with Saved Policy ENV12 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and Section 15 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

14. Prior to the first occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved, all of the estate roads and footpaths (except for the final surfacing thereof) shall be laid out, constructed, lit and drained in accordance with Oxfordshire County Council's 'Conditions and Specifications for the Construction of Roads' and its subsequent amendments.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety, to ensure a satisfactory standard of construction and layout for the development and to comply with Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

15. A plan detailing the proposed parking and turning provision for vehicles to be accommodated within the site (including details of the proposed surfacing and drainage of the provision), shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of those works. The approved parking and turning facilities shall be laid out and completed in accordance with the approved details before the first occupation of the dwellings. The car parking and turning spaces shall be retained for the parking turning of vehicles at all times thereafter.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety, to ensure the provision of adequate offstreet car parking and turning and to comply with Government guidance in Section 12 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

16. Details of a turning area to be provided within the site so that motor vehicles may enter, turn around and leave in a forward direction including refuse and emergency service vehicles (including surfacing and drainage details) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the development reaches slab level. The turning area shall be constructed and completed in accordance with the approved details before the development is first occupied and shall be retained for the manoeuvring of motor vehicles at all times thereafter.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to comply with Government guidance in Section 12 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

17. Prior to the first use or occupation of the development hereby permitted, covered cycle parking facilities shall be provided on the site in accordance with details to be first submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The covered cycle parking facilities so provided shall thereafter be permanently retained and maintained for the parking of cycles in connection with the development.

Reason: In the interests of promoting sustainable transport modes in accordance with Government advice in the National Planning Policy Framework.

18. Prior to the first occupation of the development a Residential Travel Plan and Residential Travel Information Pack shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the approved Travel Plan Statement shall be implemented and operated in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In the interests of sustainability, to ensure a satisfactory form of development and to comply with Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

19. No temporary obstructions including any materials, plant, temporary structures or excavations of any kind shall be deposited / undertaken on or adjacent to the public right of way that may obstruct or dissuade the public from using the public right of way whilst the development takes place.

Reason: To ensure the public right of way remains available and convenient for public use.

20. No development shall commence unless and until full details of the tree protection measures for all trees and hedges to be retained have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These measures shall be set out in a detailed Arboricultural Method Statement to include the specification of the location and type of protective fencing, the timings for the erection and removal of the protective fencing, the details of any hard surfacing and underground services proposed within the root protection areas, all to be in accordance with the British Standard for Trees in Relation to Construction 5837: 2012, and the monitoring of tree protection measures during construction. All tree protective measures shall be carried out as set out in the approved Arboricultural Method Statement.

Reason: To protect the visual amenity of the area in accordance with policies.

21. No development above slab level shall be carried out until a lighting scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved lighting scheme shall be implemented in full compliance prior to the first occupation on the site.

Reason: To protect the amenities of nearby residents, visual amenity and to comply with Policy ESD15 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011 – 2031 Part 1, Saved Policies C28 and C30 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

- 22. A scheme for landscaping the site shall be provided to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority which shall include:-
 - (a) details of the proposed tree and shrub planting including their species, number, sizes and positions, together with grass seeded/turfed areas and written specifications (including cultivation and other operations associated with plant and grass establishment i.e. depth of topsoil, mulch etc),
 - (b) details of the existing trees and hedgerows to be retained as well as those to be felled, including existing and proposed soil levels at the base of each tree/hedgerow and the minimum distance between the base of the tree and the nearest edge of any excavation,
 - (c) details of the hard landscaping including hard surface areas, pavements, pedestrian areas and steps.

The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved landscaping scheme and the hard landscape elements shall be carried out prior to the first occupation/use of the development and shall be retained as such thereafter.

Reason: To ensure that a satisfactory landscape scheme is provided in the interest of well planned development and visual amenity and to accord with Policy ESD15 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011 – 2031 Part 1, Saved Policy C28 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

23. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be carried out in accordance with BS 4428:1989 Code of Practice for general landscape operations (excluding hard surfaces), or the most up to date and current British Standard, in the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of the building(s) or on the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner. Any trees, herbaceous planting and shrubs which, within a period of five years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the current/next planting season with others of similar size and species.

Reason – In the interests of the visual amenities of the area, to ensure the creation of a pleasant environment for the development and to comply with Policy ESD15 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 Part 1, saved Policy C28 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

24. Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved a Landscape and Ecology Management Plan (LEMP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall not be carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To protect habitats of importance to biodiversity conservation from any loss or damage in accordance with Policy ESD10 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011 – 2031 Part 1 and Government guidance contained within Section 15 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

- 25. No development shall take place (including demolition, ground works, vegetation clearance) until a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP: Biodiversity) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The CEMP: Biodiversity shall include as a minimum:
 - (a) Risk assessment of potentially damaging construction activities;
 - (b) Identification of 'Biodiversity Protection Zones';
 - (c) Practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive working practices) to avoid or reduce impacts during construction (may be provided as a set of method statements);
 - (d) The location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to biodiversity features;
 - (e) The times during construction when specialist ecologists need to be present on site to oversee works;
 - (f) Responsible persons and lines of communication;
 - (g) The role and responsibilities on site of an ecological clerk of works (ECoW) or similarly competent person;
 - (h) Use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and warning signs

The approved CEMP: Biodiversity shall be adhered to and implemented throughout the construction period strictly in accordance with the approved details, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To protect habitats of importance to biodiversity conservation from any loss or damage in accordance with Policy ESD10 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011 – 2031 Part 1 and Government guidance contained within Section 15 of the National Planning Policy Framework. This information is required prior to commencement of the development as it is fundamental to the acceptability of the scheme.

26. Full details of the siting, appearance and colour of any electricity or gas supply meter housings to be located on the external elevations of the buildings shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the construction of the building above

slab level. The development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In order to safeguard the visual amenities of the area in accordance with Policy ESD15 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011 – 2031 Part 1, Saved Policy C28 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996.

27. Notwithstanding the provisions of Class A of Part 1, Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as amended) (or in any provision equivalent to that class in any statutory instrument revoking, amending or re-enacting that order), the garage(s) shown on the approved plans shall be retained for the garaging of private motor vehicles and shall not be converted to provide additional living accommodation without the grant of further specific planning permission from the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety, to ensure the provision of adequate offstreet car parking to comply with Government guidance in Section 12 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

28. Notwithstanding the provisions of Classes A-D (inc) of Part 1 of Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking or reenacting or amending that order) no enlargement alteration or improvement of any dwellinghouse shall be undertaken at any time without the grant of further specific planning permission from the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: Taking into account the density of the site it is considered to be in the public interest to ensure the merits of future proposals can be assessed by the Local Planning Authority so that the amenities of the adjoining occupier(s) are not adversely affected in accordance with Policy ESD15 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011 – 2031 Part 1, Saved Policies C28 and C30 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and Section 12 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

29. The first-floor window in the east elevation of plot 9 shall be obscure glazed, using manufactured obscure glass, (not an applied adhesive film) before the dwelling is first occupied and shall be permanently retained as such thereafter. The window shall also be non-opening, unless those parts which can be opened are more than 1.7m above the floor of the room in which it is installed and shall be permanently retained as such thereafter.

Reason: To ensure that the amenities of the adjoining occupier(s) are not adversely affected by loss of privacy in accordance with Policy ESD15 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011 – 2031 Part 1, Saved Policies C28 and C30 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and

Planning Committee - 2 November 2023

Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

30. Full details of the enclosures along all boundaries and within the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of those works. Such approved means of enclosure, in respect of those dwellings which are intended to be screened, shall be erected prior to the first occupation of those dwellings and shall be retained as such thereafter.

Reason: To ensure the satisfactory appearance of the completed development, to safeguard the privacy of the occupants of the existing and proposed dwellings and to comply with Policy ESD15 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011 – 2031 Part 1, Saved Policies C28 and C30 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

31. Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted, written confirmation that the development achieves a water efficiency limit of 110 litres/person/day under Part G of the Building Regulations shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: Cherwell District is in an area of water stress, to mitigate the impacts of climate change and in the interests of sustainability, to comply with Policies ESD1 and ESD3 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 Part 1 and Government guidance in the National Planning Policy Framework.

79 Whitelands Farm Sports Ground, Whitelands Way, Bicester, OX26 1AJ

The Committee considered application 23/00018/F for perimeter lighting around the running track for the Whitelands sports farm site at Whitelands Farm Sports Ground, Whitelands Way, Bicester, OX26 1AJ for Bicester Town Council.

In reaching its decision the Committee considered the officers report and presentation and the written updates.

Resolved

(1) That, in line with the officer's recommendation, application 23/00018/F be approved and authority be delegated to the Assistant Director for Planning and Development to grant permission, subject to no new material planning considerations being raised before the expiry of the consultation period and to the conditions set out below (and any amendments to those conditions as deemed necessary)

Conditions

Time Limit

1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.

Reason - To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Compliance with Plans

2. Except where otherwise stipulated by conditions attached to this permission, the development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the following plans and documents:

Site Location and Block Plan

Proposed finished levels and drainage layouts (ref: DE1101824001) Zeta Rapid Mount Solar Nano lighting details

Reason – For the avoidance of doubt, to ensure that the development is carried out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority and comply with Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

3. Prior to the erection, installation, fixing, placement and/or operation of any external lighting on the site (including on the building itself), details of such external lighting shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such details shall include the equipment and supporting structures, positions, sizes, heights, type, luminance/light intensity, direction and cowling of all external lights and other parts of the application site and the hours at which such lighting is to be operated. This scheme shall ensure that light trespass into the windows of any light sensitive premises shall be appropriately mitigated in accordance with the Institution of Lighting Professionals Guidance Notes for the Reduction of Obtrusive Light GN01/20).

Reason – To ensure the proposed lighting columns do not impact on the amenity of residents in nearby properties in accordance with Policy ESD15 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031, saved policy ENV1 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and the aims and objectives of the National Planning Policy Framework.

80 Appeals Progress Report

The Assistant Director Planning and Development submitted a report which informed Members about planning appeal progress including decisions received and the scheduling of public inquiries and hearings for new and current appeals.

Resolved

The meeting ended at 6.36 pm	
Chairman:	
Date:	

That the position statement be accepted.

(1)

Planning Obligation	Regulation 122 Assessment		
Detail	Amounts	Trigger point	
Provision of off-site biodiversity net gain (BNG) at a specified site to mitigate the impact of the development.	Confirm the BNG provision and measures, over a 30 year period, with Biodiversity Habitat Management Plan (including metric and monitoring intervals and review periods) to be submitted.	Biodiversity Habitat Management Plan to be submitted prior to the commencement of any on site works.	Necessary – The dwelling requires appropriate BNG provision to offset the impact of the development, in line with the Developer Contributions SPD, supported by Policy ESD10 of the CLP 2015. Directly related – The need comes from the proposed dwelling and the works occurring to the land. Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind – The BNG provision will be proportionate to the development and is secured in relation to the Developer Contributions SPD.

21/01966/F - APPENDIX 1- Heads of Terms for Section 106 Agreement/undertaking

Planning Obligation			Regulation 122 Assessment
Detail	Amount	Trigger point	
Provision of off-site commuted sum for improvements to local play area	£30,000	No more than SEVENTY PER CENT (70%) of the Dwellings shall be Occupied until the Practical Completion Certificate has been issued	CLP 2015 and advice in the Developer Contributions SPD (2018)
Enhancement of biodiversity as mitigation for the net loss on site	2.2 habitat units (TBC)	Prior to the commencement of development	